
 

 
 

 

 
 
To: Councillor Milne, Convener; Councillor Finlayson, Vice Convener; and Councillors 

Boulton, Cooney, Corall, Cormie, Crockett, Donnelly, Hutchison, Jaffrey, 
Lawrence, Malik, Jean Morrison MBE, Nicoll, Greig, Jennifer Stewart and 
Sandy Stuart. 
 
Also (as local members):- Councillors Grant and Noble. 
 

 

 
Town House, 

ABERDEEN 31 October 2016 
 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
(VISITS) 

 

 The Members of the PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
(VISITS) are requested to meet in  on FRIDAY, 4 NOVEMBER 2016 at 9.30 am. 

 
 
 

 
FRASER BELL 

HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 
B U S I N E S S 

 

 WHERE THE RECOMMENDATION IS ONE OF APPROVAL 

 

1   66 Tillydrone Avenue - Change of Use from 5 bedroom Dwelling (Class 9) to Six 
Bedroom HMO (Sui Generis), Replacement Roof, Replacement Windows to Rear 
Extension, Reduction of Window and Blocking up of Doo -  161003  (Pages 3 - 48) 

2   14 the Chanonry - Part change of use from class 9 (residential)to mixed use, 
associated to the Diocese of Aberdeen, incorporating class 10 (activities 
associated to a religious body) as part  of ground floor, and Class 4 (Offices) at 2nd 
floor - 161152  (Pages 49 - 110) 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 
 

 
Note: (One) The Planning Officials in attendance on the visits can be contacted by 

mobile phone, the number is:- 07802 323986. 
 (Two) The transport for the visits will depart the Town House from the Broad 

Street entrance at 9.30 prompt. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Mark 
Masson on 01224 522989 or email mmasson@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 



Planning Development Management Committee 
Detailed Planning Permission 

 
161003/DPP: Change of use from 5 bedroom dwelling (Class 9) to six 
bedroom HMO (Sui Generis), replacement roof, replacement windows to 
rear extension, reduction of window and blocking up of door to rear 
extension at 66 Tillydrone Avenue, Aberdeen, AB24 2TN,  
 
For: LOJJ (Scotland) Ltd 
 

Application Date: 25 July 2016 

Officer: Karla Mann 

Ward: Tillydrone/Seaton/Old Aberdeen 

Community Council: Old Aberdeen 

Advertisement: Development affecting a Listed Building or Conservation Area 
(S60/S65) 

Advertised Date: 17.08.2016 – 07.09.2016 

 

 
 

Location Plan  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Conditionally 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



APPLICATION REF: 161003/DPP 

 
SITE DESCRIPTION 
The site is a semi-detached 2 storey dwelling, dating from the 1920s, with existing 
single storey rear and side extension. The property has cream coloured harled walls 
and a slated hipped roof. The front elevation has a hipped gabled projection with 
ground floor bay window. The existing front garden is informally covered in gravel 
chips and used as a parking area. An access lane, leading to a garage court runs 
along the south boundary, and a gate provides pedestrian access from this lane to 
the rear garden. 
 
The property is located within an identified residential area along Tillydrone Avenue 
and falls within the Old Aberdeen Conservation Area. Surrounding properties 
include: a row of terraced granite built two storey dwellings, constructed in the 1950s 
by the University, immediately to the south; four storey flats opposite; and large two 
storey detached dwellings to the north and east. 
 
The property is within walking distance to the University of Aberdeen, and Tillydrone 
Avenue (the route to the Third Don Crossing) sees various bus stops nearby. 
 
It is currently a residential dwelling that was previously used as a House of Multiple 
Occupation (HMO) with five bedrooms. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
Application Number Proposal Decision Date 

150402 Removal of single storey extension 
and chimney stack, erection of 2 
storey side and rear extension and 
change of use from dwelling (class 9) 
to HMO (Sui Generis) 

25.06.2016 
 
 

 
Status: Refused 

950767 House extension and alterations 
(including replacement windows) 

12.06.1995 
 
Status: Approved 

 
 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL 
Detailed Planning Permission is sought to change the use of the current 5 bedroom 
residential dwelling to a 6 Bedroom HMO and to replace the roof of the rear 
extension.  
 
The internal layout of the property would be restructured to allow for an additional 
bedroom (totalling 6) and would include blocking a door on the north elevation of the 
extension and reducing the size of a window on the east elevation of the extension. 
These windows would be replaced with white PVCu, tilt and turn windows which will 
match in design to current PVCu windows to the rear. 
 
Originally the rear extension roof was to be replaced with a lead look single ply 
membrane finish; however this has been amended to be replaced with blue/grey 
natural slate to match existing. 
 

Page 4



APPLICATION REF: 161003/DPP 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
All drawings and supporting documents listed below can be viewed on the Council’s 
website at www.publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk. 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management 
Committee because the Old Aberdeen Community Council has objected to the 
proposals for change of use and replacement roof. The application also received 7 
additional objections. Accordingly, the application falls outwith the scope of the 
Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
Consultee Date of Comments  Comments Made 

ACC - Roads 
Development 
Management Team 

8 August 2016 No Objection – Comments: 
 
ACC’s supplementary guidance on 
the parking requirement for a 5 
bedroom HMO in this area of the 
city is 0.5 spaces per bedroom i.e. 
2.5 parking spaces would be 
required by ACC. One extra 
bedroom (6 bedrooms) would 
require 3 parking spaces by this 
calculation. Given the existing use 
and proposed use is a change 
which does not alter the parking 
requirement Roads officers do not 
foresee issues caused by an 
additional bedroom at the property. 
 
The HMO is located within a short 
walking distance of Aberdeen 
University and it is likely the HMO 
would be available to students 
attending the university. Public 
transport is also available on 
Tillydrone Avenue to a number of 
locations in Aberdeen. This high 
level of public transport 
accessibility (within a 400m walk) is 
acceptable to ACC. There are 
options available not to wholly rely 
upon private car use.  
 

Community Council  07 September 2016 Objection 
 
The Old Aberdeen Community 
Council object to the application on 
the following grounds: 
 

Page 5

http://www.publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/


APPLICATION REF: 161003/DPP 

1. Inadequate Parking:  
The previous application 150402 to 
increase property to 9 no. 
bedrooms was refused due to 
insufficient parking  and the need to 
enable a car to turn around on site. 
The proposal for 6 bedrooms would 
require 3 parking spaces and thus 
the existing parking provision is not 
enough to enable 3 spaces plus a 
turnaround area. 
It was noted that there is no 
provision for covered parking 
bicycle parking, also an issue 
raised within previous application. 
 
2. Inappropriate roofing material: 
The proposed roofing material of 
‘lead look single ply roof membrane 
finish’ would be unsympathetic to 
the property and the conservation 
area, especially as these are 
publically visible. 
 
3. Excessive density of 

accommodation: 
The creation of 6 bedrooms allows 
the possibility of considerably more 
than 6 tenants to be residing within 
the property. This could have an 
adverse impact on the residential 
amenity of the area, mainly due to 
increase level of noise and 
movement. Previous application 
150402 was rejected on this basis. 
 
4. Fire Safety 
The back door of this property has 
been closed off, thus there is only 
one egress for all 6 bedrooms at 
the front door. This configuration 
could cause potential fire safety 
concerns.           

 
REPRESENTATIONS 
8 letters of objection have been received. The matters raised can be summarised as 
follows:-  
 

 Increase in noise disturbance due to the increase in the number of bedrooms 
impacting on the character of surrounding area and wildlife 

Page 6



APPLICATION REF: 161003/DPP 

 Insufficient car parking to serve the residents and visitors to the property, 
resulting in displacement of existing car spaces for local residents; 

 Detrimental to public safety by not allowing access and egress in forward gear 
onto busy main road; 

 Increase of traffic which poses risk to children playing in the ‘green’ and area 
of garages behind numbers 54-64; 

 Road safety issues from pedestrian use of the side road access lane; 

 Intensive occupancy by virtue of HMO would be detrimental to the 
surrounding residential amenity; 

 Balance might change from a community characterised by families to an area 
dominated by students; 

 The removal of rear door would cause safety issues for occupiers and 
increase movement along the side lane for access to rear garage; 

 The removal of rear door would fail to provide residential amenity for 
occupants; 

 The proposal would set a precedent for similar applications, resulting in 
altering the composition of the community, with a significant increase in the 
number of students; 

 
One objection was received which related to an extension and the introduction of 7 
bedrooms, however this does not relate to this application and these issues are 
therefore not considered within the evaluation. 
 
PLANNING POLICY 
National Planning Policy and Guidance 
Scottish Planning Policy 
Historic Environment Scotland Policy Statement (HESPS) 
 
Adopted Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
Policy T2 – Managing the Transport Impacts of Development 
Policy D1 – Architecture and Placemaking 
Policy D5 – Built Heritage 
Policy H1 – Residential Area 
 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
Policy T2 – Managing the Transport Impacts of Development 
Policy D1 – Quality Placemaking by Design 
Policy D4 – Historic Environment 
Policy H1 – Residential Area 
 
OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
Scottish Planning Series – Planning Circular 2/2012 (Houses in Multiple Occupation: 
Guidance on Planning Control and Licensing) 
 
Supplementary Guidance 
Householder Development Guide 
Transport and Accessibility  
 
Conservation Area Appraisal 
Old Aberdeen Conservation Area Appraisal 

Page 7



APPLICATION REF: 161003/DPP 

 
EVALUATION 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 
require that where, in making any determination under the planning acts, regard is to 
be had to the provisions of the Development Plan and that determination shall be 
made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the application unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise.     
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 
1997 places a duty on planning authorities to preserve and enhance the character or 
appearance of conservation areas 
 
Principle of the proposed change of use 
The application site is situated in a residential area and thus any development is 
required to comply with Policy H1 (Residential Areas) of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan. The relevant sections of Policy H1 states that proposals for 
residential development in residential areas will be approved in principle if it: 
 

 Does not constitute over development; and 

 Does not have an unacceptable impact on the character or amenity of the 
surrounding area;  

 
The Council also has supplementary guidance relating to proposals for a change of 
use of a dwellinghouse to a House in Multiple Occupancy (HMO). This is contained 
within the Householder Development Guide. The relevant supplementary guidance 
states that the three main considerations in applications for change of use to an 
HMO are likely to be: 
 

 Impact on pedestrian or road traffic safety; 

 Impact on residential amenity (both for occupants of the property and those 
living in the surrounding area); and 

 Whether or not there is an excessive concentration of HMO’s in a given 
locality, cumulatively resulting in a material change in the character of that 
area. 

 
In this case, the existing residential dwelling, which has previously been in use as a 
5 bedroom HMO, would have its internal layout changed to accommodate one 
additional bedroom. It is considered that the addition of one extra room to a property 
would not constitute as overdevelopment or a material intensification of the use. 
However, issues of amenity, both for occupants of the HMO and neighbouring 
properties, need careful assessment. Additionally, the impact of the proposal on the 
character and appearance of the Old Aberdeen Conservation Area are considered in 
detail below. 
 
Impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area, including the Old 
Aberdeen Conservation Area: 
The material originally proposed for the replacement roof to the extension has been 
changed during the application process at the request of officers. The originally 
proposed ply membrane material has been changed to a blue/grey natural slate to 
match the existing roof. To accommodate the slate the pitch of the roof has been 

Page 8



APPLICATION REF: 161003/DPP 

increased. This increases the proposed height of the extension from the existing 
height of 1.8m to a new height of c. 2.2m.  The new design of the roof also changes 
the roof from a relatively flat roof to a single pitch, which is similar to the pitch of the 
roof of the original property. These proposed changes are felt to be in keeping and 
sensitive to the conservation area.  
 
The proposed rainwater goods would be black UPVC with lead flashings; these are 
similar to what are on the current extension. The positioning of the rainwater pipe on 
the public west elevation has been considerate and placed in the corner of the 
extension and original building. These rainwater goods are common on relatively 
new extensions and it is not felt that it would be out of character within the 
conservation area.  
 
It is therefore considered that, due to the agreed amendments, the proposal’s design 
complies with Policy D1 and B4 of the Local Development Plan, and is unlikely to 
have an adverse effect on the character of the surrounding area or the Old Aberdeen 
Conservation Area. 
 
Impact on the residential amenities of occupants and neighbouring properties 
A significant issue in relation to this application is its impact on the residential 
amenities of neighbouring properties. The building has previously been in use as an 
HMO with five bedrooms, which does not require planning permission. However, 
under the current proposal, the number of bedrooms would be increased to 6, thus 
triggering the requirement for planning permission.  
 
Issues were raised in relation to the number of bedrooms proposed in this change of 
use. As there are 6 double bedrooms proposed, it was highlighted that there is the 
potential to accommodate up to 12 people. Although this may be the case, this would 
be controlled at the HMO licensing stage and at planning stage we can only consider 
the number of bedrooms and not number of potential occupants.  
 
Although not in the same use class - in planning terms - as a dwellinghouse, the use 
of a property as an HMO still fundamentally constitutes a residential use, albeit of an 
increased intensity compared to a standard single-family occupied dwelling. As a 
result of the intensified residential use of a property created by its conversion to an 
HMO, it is appreciated that there is likely to be some level of impact on the amenity 
of the surrounding area in terms of increased comings and goings to the property, 
both in terms of occupants and visitors, and an increased potential for the generation 
of noise. However, the property in question is located adjacent to a busy main road. 
As such it is likely that any noise generated by comings and goings is likely to be 
relatively insignificant compared to the noise generated from traffic using the road.  
 
Due to its proximity to the University of Aberdeen, concerns were raised about 
student tenants and problems which they can often bring with regards to noise and 
disturbances. Although it is plausible that the student rental market may be targeted, 
this may not be the case and therefore should not be presumed. Even so, a number 
of issues were raised regarding the issues associated with student rentals. 
 
Concerns were raised regarding possible noise generation from outdoor garden 
parties, again often associated with student accommodation. As with any property, 

Page 9



APPLICATION REF: 161003/DPP 

residential or HMO, there would always be the potential to experience outside 
parties, potentially to the nuisance of neighbours. However, it is felt that it is unlikely 
that noise of this nature would be generated on a regular basis and is just as likely to 
be created from a residential property with 6 bedrooms as with HMO’s. In addition to 
this, one objection mentioned that there was the potential to use the roof as an 
outdoor seating area; however with the redesign of the roof, changing it from 
somewhat flat to a fully pitched roof, it is unlikely this would be possible. 
 
It was also noted in the objections that if this application was to be approved this had 
the potential to set a precedent for approving similar applications within the area and 
thus altering the balance of residents towards students and changing the character 
of the area. It should be noted that each planning application is decided on its own 
merits and is considered against the Local Development Plan and Supplementary 
Guidance (Householder Development Guide), within which it requires consideration 
of “excessive concentration of HMOs in a given locality, cumulatively resulting in a 
material change in the character of that area.” However, through planning research 
and consultation with the HMO Licencing department it has been identified that there 
is one HMO Licence in vicinity of the site, at 70 Tillydrone Avenue, however as this 
will be 5 bedrooms or less it did not require planning permission and is considered to 
be a residential dwellinghouse in planning terms. It is therefore not considered that 
approval of this application would result in a change of character to the area as it 
would still be dominated by family housing/dwellinghouses. 
 
With regards to the removal, and blocking up, of the rear door to accommodate the 
6th bedroom, concerns were raised over the potential of increased external 
movement to access the back garden, rear lane and garages, thus causing nuisance 
to other residential properties and possible pedestrian safety. It is likely that tenants 
would be able to access the rear garden by means of a side access within their own 
property located between the south of the side extension and boundary fence. 
During a site visit, the planning case officer was able to walk along this side access. 
It is therefore felt that this is unlikely to cause any significant impact on neighbouring 
properties.  
 
The blocking of the rear door also raised health and safety concerns in terms of fire 
access, however it has been confirmed that the windows on the east elevation will be 
designed, to incorporate a tilt and turn design to allow fire escape in line with building 
standards. It should also be noted that fire access and safety lies with Building 
Standards Officers and not with the planning authority. 
 
It is therefore considered that the creation of a 6 bedroom HMO would be unlikely to 
conflict with the enjoyment of the existing residential amenity of neighbouring 
properties, nor change the character of the property and would not be contrary to 
policy H1 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan and the Householder 
Development Guide. 
 
Impact on public highways, especially in relation to parking and access, and 
pedestrian safety: 
With regards to parking on the property, Aberdeen City Council’s Roads 
Management Team was consulted on the proposed use and was found to have no 
objections. It was clarified that following Supplementary Guidance on Transport and 

Page 10



APPLICATION REF: 161003/DPP 

Accessibility the creation of a 6 bedroom HMO would require 3 parking space, which 
is an increase of 0.5 spaces from the existing 5 bedroom HMO. Due to only the slight 
increase in parking need, according to the parking standards, it is considered that no 
additional on-site parking is required in this instance. It is also noted that public 
transport is highly accessible within the area (within 400m walk) and, where students 
to reside in the property, it is only a short distance walk from the University of 
Aberdeen. Again due to this, it is felt that the pressures of relying upon private car 
usage would be relieved and would support the acceptability of the proposal.  
 
With regards to the need for a turnaround area within the front parking area of the 
property, as there would be no additional on-site parking required, as mentioned 
above and thus no additional traffic entering or leaving the site, the current parking 
arrangements would remain. Whilst acknowledging that the road is now busier as a 
result of the opening of the Third Don Crossing, roads officers have not raised an 
objection to the parking arrangements. The proposal is unlikely to cause any 
significant detrimental impact on public safety. 
 
In light of consultations with the Roads Management Team it is considered that there 
is unlikely to be any significant impact on public highways, parking or pedestrian 
safety and thus the proposal is considered to comply with Policy T2 of the Aberdeen 
Local Development Plan and Supplementary Guidance within Transport and 
Accessibility. 
 
Waste storage 
A condition has been added with regard to the bin storage requirements and contact 
details have been provided as an informative, in order that sufficient bin storage 
facilities can be provided. 
 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
The Proposed ALDP was approved for submission for Examination by Scottish 
Ministers at the meeting of the Communities, Housing and Infrastructure Committee 
of 27 October 2015 and the Reporter has now reported back. The proposed plan 
constitutes the Council’s settled view as to what should be the content of the final 
adopted ALDP and is now a material consideration in the determination of planning 
applications, along with the adopted ALDP. The exact weight to be given to matters 
contained in the Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to specific 
applications will depend on whether: 
 
•            these matters have been subject to comment by the Reporter; and 
•            the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration. 
 
The Reporters response does not affect policies in a manner that is relevant to this 
application. In relation to this particular application proposal policies in the Proposed 
LDP are not materially different from those in the adopted LDP. 
Approval to adopt the LDP will be sought at Full Council meeting of 14th December. 
The actual adoption date is likely to be around the third week in January. 
 
In relation to this particular application, Policies D1 Architecture and Placemaking, 
D4 Historic Environment, H1 Residential Areas and T2 Managing the Transport 
Impacts of Development substantively reiterates the guidance given from the policy 

Page 11



APPLICATION REF: 161003/DPP 

in the adopted Local Development Plan and the proposal is therefore acceptable in 
terms of both plans for the reasons previously given 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Conditionally 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The use of the premises as a House of Multiple Occupation (HMO) is not considered 

to result in any undue impact on the character and amenity of the property, or on the 

surrounding area. The proposed alterations to the roof, rear door and windows are 

felt to be considerate and would not cause any detrimental impact to the character of 

the conservation area and thus comply with policy D5 of the Aberdeen Local 

Development Plan (ALDP). The proposal would have no adverse impact on 

pedestrian or road safety, and it is considered that the proposed change of use 

would not result in an overprovision of HMO’s, nor a material change in the character 

of the surrounding area. The proposals are therefore considered to accord with 

Policy H1 (Residential Development) of the ALDP, and the relevant content 

pertaining to HMOs in the Council's adopted Householder Development Guide. It is 

considered that the change of use would not result in a significant increase in traffic 

generated by occupants of the property and the proposals therefore comply with the 

aims of Policy T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development) of the ALDP. 

The proposed change of use and alterations are also considered to comply with the 

relevant corresponding policies of the Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan. 

 
CONDITIONS 
It is recommended that the application be approved subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

(1) A scheme for the storage of waste generated by the occupants of the HMO 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority within 
2 months of the issue of the decision for the application. Thereafter the 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the details so agreed and 
the HMO shall not be occupied unless waste storage provision has been 
provided and is available for use – In order to preserve the existing amenity of 
the area. 

 
 

INFORMATIVES 
Waste Services Comments 

The 6 residents will require the following facilities: 

 An additional 240l wheeled general waste bin 

 An additional 240l wheeled food waste/ food waste bin. In addition another 
kitchen caddy will be supplied for food waste 

 An additional black box and white bag for recycling (Paper/Cardboard, 
Plastic Bottles, Tins, Cans and Glass jars and bottles). Please note that 

Page 12



APPLICATION REF: 161003/DPP 

the black box and white bag will be swapped for 1 x 240litre recycling 
wheeled bin from 2017. 

 

Please note that levels of provision may alter in line with changing service 

requirements across the city that corresponds to alterations in legislation. For 

example, recycling systems may be altered to accommodate co-mingled collections 

in due course.  

It is pertinent to note that these services will be provided taking account of the 

following: 

General points 

 All the wheeled bins and black boxes/white bags must be presented at the 
kerbside of only on the collection day and removed from the kerbside as soon 
as possible. No containers should be permanently stored on the kerbside.  

 No excess should be stored out with the containment provided. Information 
for extra waste uplift is available to residents at either 
www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/wasteaware or by phoning 08456 08 09 19. 

 A path should be provided to the vehicle collection point which is level with bin 
stores. Pathways to the collection vehicles should be free of obstacles with 
provision of a slope should there be any gradient; so that any containment 
can be easily moved to the kerbside on collection days. Pathways should be 
suitably paved to allow bins to be moved safely. 

 

In respect of any construction site signage it is important to note that in the interests 

of public safety, it is illegal to advertise on public highways, street furniture and 

lampposts.   Any signage installed to direct visitors to the development requires to be 

authorised by the Planning Department. Anything installed out-with such approval 

could be classed as fly-posting and will incur action by Environment Officers. 

Developers must contact Aberdeen City Council using the above details a 

minimum of two months before properties will be occupied. Bins MUST be on 

site prior to residents moving into properties.  A purchase order can be raised with 

Aberdeen City Council using the above details. We will provide guidance in 

purchasing the bins. 

It might be pertinent nearer the final stages of completion for a representative from 

Aberdeen City Council’s waste team to assess the site to ensure that all of our 

considerations have been implemented. This will be undertaken by the Recycling 

Officer for that area. I ask that you contact us with a suitable date and time in the 

future.  

 

 

 

Page 13

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/wasteaware


APPLICATION REF: 161003/DPP 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



Page 1 of 2

Development Management
Planning and Sustainable Development
Aberdeen City Council
Business Hub 4, Marischal College
Broad Street
Aberdeen, AB10 1AB
HMOUnit@aberdeencity.gov.uk

107 High Street
Old Aberdeen
AB24 3EN

7th September, 2016

Dear Ms Mann

Planning application 161003 ‐ 66 Tillydrone Ave; Change of use to 6 bedroom HMO

The Old Aberdeen Community Council wish to OBJECT to this planning application for the following
reasons:

 Inadequate parking
 Inappropriate roofing material
 Excessive density of accommodation adjacent to family housing

We would also like to make the Committee aware that the Applicant appears to hold Council�s due
process in some contempt as they have been progressing steadily with the alterations requested in
this planning application. Planning was made aware of significant ongoing alteration works at this
property on 22 August, but work has continued unabated and the internal work (room division,
plumbing, cabling) appears to be now complete, with just the work required to rebuild the roof yet
to be started.

Inadequate parking
We note that the Roads Department have responded to this planning application with the comment
'No observation'. We consider this response to be inadequate as it fails to evaluate the situation on
the ground and must therefore make the following observation:
Planning application 150402 for this property sought to increase the property to 9 beds. The Roads
officer rejected the application as he considered the available parking as insufficient, particularly
with reference to the location alongside a busy road and considered it essential that any parking
facilities should enable a car to turn around on‐site so as to ensure a driver did not attempt to
reverse onto what was going to be a busy road, once the bridge was completed. It should be noted
that the inadequate parking was the basis of the second reason identified within the Committee's
decision notice for rejection of the application.
Although the bedroom numbers are now reduced to 6, this would still indicate a desirability to offer
3 parking spaces (ref. Supplementary Guidance Transport and Accessibility, March 2012), yet the
current layout is only sufficient to provide one space with turning room.
It is also noted that there is no provision for covered bicycle parking ‐ an issue raised by the Roads
officer for the earlier application.

Page 15



Page 2 of 2

Inappropriate roofing material
The kitchen roof extension, currently comprises a slate pitched roof visible from the road, plus a
further flat roof on the east side of the property, invisible from the road. � See photo below:

The application proposes to replace these two roof areas with a single pitched roof. Our only
objection to this is that the application proposes that the roof; �be clad with lead look single ply roof
membrane finish�. This may be an economical, modern material, but it is wholly unsympathetic to
the property in question which is located within the Old Aberdeen Conservation Area.
As the west and south elevations of this roof are clearly visible from the public road, we consider
that slate roofing should be retained, to match the existing roofing material on this property and all
the others in the neighbourhood;‐ in compliance with the requirements to preserve and enhance the
appearance of a property within a conservation area.

Excessive density of accommodation
The previous planning application 150402 was rejected on the basis of "adverse impact on the
residential amenity of the area, mainly due to increased level of noise and movements". While this
application, compared to the previous, has reduced the number of rooms to 6 (from 9), they are all
double bedrooms thus considerably more than 6 tenants could be living here. We therefore contend
that the negative impact, identified within the Committee's decision notice for rejection of the
earlier application, still stands.

Yours sincerely

Dewi Morgan
Planning Officer and Webadmin
Old Aberdeen Community Council

Page 16



Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Comments for Planning Application 161003/DPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 161003/DPP

Address: 66 Tillydrone Avenue Aberdeen AB24 2TN

Proposal: Change of use from 5 bedroom dwelling (Class 9) to six bedroom HMO (Sui Generis)

and replacement roof

Case Officer: Karla Mann

 

Customer Details

Name: Dr Helen Lynch

Address: Not Available

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:The main concern would be the number of vehicles that would be associated with this

property if 6 or more students were to live there, which would have implications for parking and for

safety. This is a residential area with a lot of young children playing in the communal areas on the

'green' and by the garages behind the terrace 54-64. With the removal of parking space in front of

the houses on the main road, parking is already tight for residents at the back, and there is already

a lot of illegal parking on the pavement, making the exit very dangerous. Based on past

experience, 6 students would bring with them 2 or 3 cars, and not necessarily be aware of the

playing habits of children (or elderly cats) when driving them. It also looks from the plans as if the

replacement roof and the pvc drainpipes will not be in keeping with the requirements of the

conservation area. Having students living there is not the problem - this has been a property

occupied by students in the past, and they've always been great neighbours. The change to an

HMO, rather than a 5-bedroom dwelling that happens to be occupied by students, is the issue.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Comments for Planning Application 161003/DPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 161003/DPP

Address: 66 Tillydrone Avenue Aberdeen AB24 2TN

Proposal: Change of use from 5 bedroom dwelling (Class 9) to six bedroom HMO (Sui Generis)

and replacement roof

Case Officer: Karla Mann

 

Customer Details

Name: Dr Rodolfo Hernández

Address: 60 Tillydrone Avenue, Aberdeen AB24 2TN

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:I write to you in reference to the planning permission for the house in 66 Tillydrone

Avenue. There are a number of concerns about this application that I believe should be dealt with

before the application can be approved.

 

The group of houses at Tillydrone Avenue has been a nice community for a long time. Last year I

found myself talking with an old couple that came back to Aberdeen to receive a recognition from

the University. They mentioned they lived in one of the Tillydrone houses between 1960s and

1990s and remembered the nice community environment their kids grew in. We would really like to

maintain this community and family friendly environment. I believe the change from dwelling

(Class 9) to six bedroom HMO (Sui Generis) will heavily affect the family and community

environment of the Tillydrone houses. It takes a long time (years) to build up a community but a

few wrong actions to destroy it.

 

The extension in the occupancy from 5 bedroom to six double bedrooms will rise the number of

people living in the house as well as visitors. The plans (as well as the work that has already

started in the site) show double bedrooms and therefore the number of people in the house could

be up to 12! How can we be guaranteed this will not be the case?

 

On the building plans, it is not clear what material will be used to replace the existing roof. The roof

should be replaced using similar materials to those originally used (slate roof and not any other

material). This is a conservation area and the original character of the house should be preserved

 

It seems the new bedrooms layout in the ground floor blocks a direct way out from the kitchen

area to the rear garden. This must surely have a negative effects on health and safety in particular

Page 23



with more people living at or visiting the site.

 

The bushes as well as a tree at the rear and side of the garden have been cut. Presumably this is

to gain access and be able to conduct the desired work. It should be noted that there is no plan to

set any car parking space on site in addition to the places already there (at front of the property).

This should be acknowledged and respected as a higher number of cars in the area would be

unbearable.

 

For all this issues, I am afraid I cannot support this application.

 

Thank you very much.

Kind Regards,

Rodolfo Hernández

Page 24



Comments for Planning Application 161003/DPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 161003/DPP

Address: 66 Tillydrone Avenue Aberdeen AB24 2TN

Proposal: Change of use from 5 bedroom dwelling (Class 9) to six bedroom HMO (Sui Generis)

and replacement roof

Case Officer: Karla Mann

 

Customer Details

Name: Dr Rodolfo Hernández

Address: 60 Tillydrone Avenue, Aberdeen AB24 2TN

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:I have just seen a new drawing have been submitted earlier today stating that the

materials for the new roof will match existing ones.

 

In addition to my previous email, I have strong concerns about tenants not having direct access to

the rear of the property. This would probably rise the number of people moving alongside the

access to the back of the Tillydrone houses and access to the garages. I hope this can be revised.

 

Thank you,

Rodolfo Hernández

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Comments for Planning Application 161003/DPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 161003/DPP

Address: 66 Tillydrone Avenue Aberdeen AB24 2TN

Proposal: Change of use from 5 bedroom dwelling (Class 9) to six bedroom HMO (Sui Generis)

and replacement roof

Case Officer: Karla Mann

 

Customer Details

Name: Dr Tim Smith

Address: Not Available

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:1. It would change the character of this quiet residential area. The 18 houses within this

conservation area are currently all family homes with the exception of 2 small commercial lets.

2. All the residents have been tolerant of the disturbance caused by one of these commercial lets

occupied by university students. We are obviously very concerned that there is potential for

increased noise causing a public nuisance to our neighbourhood.

3. There is already a shortage of parking due to the alterations to the road for the 3rd Don

Crossing and it is more than likely that the parking problem will be exacerbated.

4. If this planning application is approved there is the danger that it will be setting a precedent and

the Council would find it difficult to refuse similar applications in the future.

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Evgenia Tsichritzi

From: Méadhbh and JB 
Sent: 06 September 2016 19:00
To: PI; Jean-Baptiste Gramain
Subject: Objection to planning application 161003/DPP

Dear Sir/Madam, 

We are writing in objection to the proposed plans for 66 Tillydrone Avenue, planning application number 
161003/DPP. 
 
We live in 68 Tillydrone Avenue which is the house adjoining number 66 and so the proposed plans would 
affect us greatly. 
 
We are aware that the plans are to extend the house so that it will contain 7 bedrooms. 
 
We are currently living in a nice area with young families and a pleasant community spirit. This is likely to 
change if the balance of residents swings towards young students who change every year. 
 
We are also concerned about the physical changes that such an extension would bring. Our two 
houses are semi-detached and very similar. They are old houses dating from the 1920's and are an integral part 
of the Old Aberdeen Conservation Area. As such, the extension planned would destroy the lovely symmetry of 
the houses, as well as be a clear overdevelopment of the site. If the house next door is extended then our house 
will also lose a lot of its charm, not only from an aesthetic point of view. We will also suffer from a loss of 
sunlight in our garden as a result of increasing the size of the property next door. 
 
In agreement with the Old Aberdeen Heritage Society, we are writing to object to the application, for the 
following additional reasons: 

1. The plan would involve removing the slates from the roof on the extension to the South side, and replacing 
them with an artificial "lead look single ply roof membrane finish". 
This would be completely out of character with the rest of the house, and unacceptable on a pitched roof on the 
front and side of a traditional house in a Conservation Area. 

2. A 7 bedroomed HMO (that is, a house occupied by 7 unrelated adults) would clearly generate a lot of 
comings and goings, and especially late at night, with student parties, etc. All this would bring with it the 
associated noise disturbance. 
When there was a (smaller) HMO there in the past, there was a lot of disturbance from noisy parties, in the 
house throughout the year, and in the garden on summer nights, and that would affect us particularly, both as 
directly adjoining neighbours, and as parents of a 19 month old. 

3. A house with 7 adults in it would also generate extra traffic and parking problems, and this is something 
which would directly affect everybody in the area. 
 

We thank you for taking the time to consider our objections, and we hope that you will consider opposing the 
project. 
 
Kind regards, 

Page 29



2

Méadhbh and Jean-Baptiste Gramain 

Page 30



Comments for Planning Application 161003/DPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 161003/DPP

Address: 66 Tillydrone Avenue Aberdeen AB24 2TN

Proposal: Change of use from 5 bedroom dwelling (Class 9) to six bedroom HMO (Sui Generis)

and replacement roof

Case Officer: Karla Mann

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Zainuddin Adnan

Address: 54 Tillydrone Avenue, Aberdeen

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:This property is within a quite family residential area. The conversion will increase the

number of tenants and will affects the serenity of the surrounding.

 

Noise and parking outside this property are the major factor. Even now we find it difficult to

manoeuvre from the side lane onto the main road when park vehicle outside the property blocking

the view from oncoming vehicle.

 

Noise will drive and scare away the wild life especially deer which feed from the back woody area.

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Comments for Planning Application 161003/DPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 161003/DPP

Address: 66 Tillydrone Avenue Aberdeen AB24 2TN

Proposal: Change of use from 5 bedroom dwelling (Class 9) to six bedroom HMO (Sui Generis)

and replacement roof

Case Officer: Karla Mann

 

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Kamariah Ismail

Address: 54 Tillydrone Avenue, Aberdeen

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:I wish to object due to the noise it will create with multiple tenancy. It was distressing

with the previous HMO especially with neighbours who have small children.

 

Tenants would sit on the roof top and make a lot of noise. There would be parking provision

problems if potentially there are 6 tenants with 6 cars.

 

This is a residential area with a very nice community who has small children playing safely at the

rear of the houses. The increase of cars would cause health and safety issues.

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Comments for Planning Application 161003/DPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 161003/DPP

Address: 66 Tillydrone Avenue Aberdeen AB24 2TN

Proposal: Change of use from 5 bedroom dwelling (Class 9) to six bedroom HMO (Sui Generis)

and replacement roof

Case Officer: Karla Mann

 

Customer Details

Name: Ms Hannah Lynch

Address: Kittybrewster depot, 38 Powis Terrace, Aberdeen AB24 3rf

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Council Employee

Stance: Customer made comments neither objecting to or supporting the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Residential Amenity

Comment:Waste Services response regarding application 161003: 66 Tillydrone Avenue

The 7 residents will require the following facilities:

- An additional 240l wheeled general waste bin

- An additional 240l wheeled food waste/ food waste bin. In addition another kitchen caddy,

biobags and information will be supplied for food waste

- An additional black box and white bag for recycling (Paper/Cardboard, Plastic Bottles, Tins, Cans

and Glass jars and bottles). Please note that the black box and white bag will be swapped for 1 x

240litre recycling wheeled bin from 2017.

It is pertinent to note that these services will be provided taking account of the following:

General points

- All the wheeled bins and black boxes/white bags must be presented at the kerbside of Tillydrone

Avenue only on the collection day and removed from the kerbside as soon as possible. No

containers should be permanently stored on the kerbside.

- No excess should be stored out with the containment provided. Information for extra waste uplift

is available to residents at either www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/wasteaware or by phoning 08456 08

09 19.

- A path should be provided to the vehicle collection point whito the vehicle collection point which

is level with bin stores. Pathways to the collection vehicles should be free of obstacles with

provision of a slope should there be any gradient; so that any containment can be easily moved to

the kerbside on collection days. Pathways should be suitably paved to allow bins to be moved

safely.

Developers must contact Aberdeen City Council using the above details a minimum of two months

before properties will be occupied. Bins MUST be on site prior to residents moving into properties.

Page 35



It might be pertinent nearer the final stages of completion for a representative from Aberdeen City

Council's waste team to assess the site to ensure that all of our considerations have been

implemented. This will be undertaken by the Recycling Officer for that area.

Page 36



Dear Ms Mann, 
 
Further to the Old Aberdeen Community Council’s submission on 7th September, we wish to add 
supplementary comments as follows; 
 
It has been brought to our attention that the back door of this property has been closed off, thus 
there is only one egress for all 6 bedrooms – the front door. 
We note that on the ground floor there are two double bedrooms to the rear of the property. Their 
only egress route is through:-  

1. A communal hall 
2. A communal kitchen 
3. Communal living room 
4. Central hall 
5. The front door 

We draw your attention to Scottish Government guidance document: “Practical fire safety guidance 
for small premises providing sleeping accommodation” dated July2010. 
On page 35 we find the following: 
 
“156. An inner room is a room where access to a circulation route can only be achieved by passing 
through another room (see fig 3). The following conditions should apply:  
 •  An  access  room  should  not  be  of  a  higher  fire  risk  than  an  inner  room,  particularly where 
the inner room is used as a bedroom.  For example, it would be unsuitable for the access room to be 
a kitchen where the inner room is a bedroom”. 
 
Could you please bring this to the attention of the appropriate building control officers for their 
immediate consideration, as the room configuration in this application would seem to run 
completely counter to this guidance.  

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

It has also been brought to our attention that the original, two part door (which matches 
its semi-detached other half) has been replaced with a single panel door. 

While the original door is traditionally made, the replacement is a formed flat structure 

with a bit of moulding stuck to the surface. We can see no necessity for such a change, it 

was not part of the planning application and we ask that the original door should be 
reinstated. 

Yours sincerely 

Dewi Morgan 

Planning Officer and Webadmin 

Old Aberdeen Community Council 

107 High St 

Old Aberdeen AB24 3EN 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Dear Ms Mann, 
 
Further to the Old Aberdeen Community Council’s submission on 7th September, we wish to add 
supplementary comments as follows; 
 
It has been brought to our attention that the back door of this property has been closed off, thus 
there is only one egress for all 6 bedrooms – the front door. 
We note that on the ground floor there are two double bedrooms to the rear of the property. Their 
only egress route is through:-  

1. A communal hall 
2. A communal kitchen 
3. Communal living room 
4. Central hall 
5. The front door 

We draw your attention to Scottish Government guidance document: “Practical fire safety guidance 
for small premises providing sleeping accommodation” dated July2010. 
On page 35 we find the following: 
 
“156. An inner room is a room where access to a circulation route can only be achieved by passing 
through another room (see fig 3). The following conditions should apply:  
 •  An  access  room  should  not  be  of  a  higher  fire  risk  than  an  inner  room,  particularly where 
the inner room is used as a bedroom.  For example, it would be unsuitable for the access room to be 
a kitchen where the inner room is a bedroom”. 
 
Could you please bring this to the attention of the appropriate building control officers for their 
immediate consideration, as the room configuration in this application would seem to run 
completely counter to this guidance.  

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

It has also been brought to our attention that the original, two part door (which matches 
its semi-detached other half) has been replaced with a single panel door. 

While the original door is traditionally made, the replacement is a formed flat structure 

with a bit of moulding stuck to the surface. We can see no necessity for such a change, it 

was not part of the planning application and we ask that the original door should be 
reinstated. 

Yours sincerely 

Dewi Morgan 

Planning Officer and Webadmin 

Old Aberdeen Community Council 

107 High St 

Old Aberdeen AB24 3EN 

 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Development Management Committee 
Detailed Planning Permission 

 
161152/DPP: Part change of use from class 9 (residential) to mixed use, 
associated to the Diocese of Aberdeen, incorporating: class 10 (activities 
associated to a religious body) at part of ground floor, and Class 4 
(offices) at 2nd floor at 14 The Chanonry, Aberdeen, AB24 1RP  
 
For: The RC Diocese of Aberdeen 
 

Application Date: 8 August 2016 

Officer: Alex Ferguson 

Ward: Tillydrone/Seaton/Old Aberdeen 

Community Council: Old Aberdeen 

Advertisement: N/A 

Advertised Date: N/A 

 

 
Location Plan 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Conditionally 
 
 
 
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 2



APPLICATION REF: 161152/DPP 

SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The property is a traditional 2½ storey detached granite and slate pitched-roof 
building situated on the southern side of the Chanonry, directly opposite St Machar’s 
Cathedral to the north. 
 
The original 18th Century section of the building (14 Chanonry) lies on an east/west 
axis and has a 19th Century addition (14A Chanonry) at its eastern end in the form of 
a 2½ storey front and side extension with gable-end facing north onto the street. 
Presumably previously in use as two separate dwellings, the two parts of the building 
have at some point been amalgamated into one large dwellinghouse, although both 
elements of the building are Category B-Listed in their own right. 
 
The application site lies within the Old Aberdeen Conservation Area and the circa 
3,800sqm plot incorporates a large rear garden area which extends over 100m to the 
south toward St Machar Drive. The surrounding area is predominantly residential in 
nature, bound to the east and west by large residential plots. 
 
The property has a driveway accessed from the Chanonry in its north western 
corner. The driveway has space for 3 cars to be parked off-street, with 1 in front of 
the dwelling and 2 between the side of the building and the western boundary wall.  
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
161151/LBC – This listed building consent application for the change of use 
associated with the current planning application was withdrawn by the applicant after 
it was confirmed that the proposed works would not involve any physical alterations 
to the fabric of the listed building – the change of use element does not require listed 
building consent. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL 
 
The proposal is to convert four rooms on the third floor (in the roofspace) of the 
building to office rooms, as well as one room on the ground floor to a ‘Parish Room’, 
to be used in conjunction with the Diocese of Aberdeen. The Bishop of the Diocese 
would use the remainder of the building as his official residence.  
 
The four rooms on the top floor would be used by 2 full-time staff, 2 part-time staff 
and 2 priests to carry out administrative tasks in support of the activities and 
functions of the Bishop and the Diocese. The Bishop is looking to relocate from his 
current residence at 3 Queen’s Cross, where the staff are also currently based.  
 
The Parish Room at ground floor level would host monthly talks for approximately 25 
people and weekly Prayer groups, consisting of approximately 6-10 people. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
All drawings and supporting documents listed below can be viewed on the Council’s 
website at www.publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk. 
 

Page 50

http://www.publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/


APPLICATION REF: 161152/DPP 

 Supporting Statement 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
 
The Old Aberdeen Community Council objected to the application unless certain 
criteria are applied – one of which (in relation to the provision of additional off-street 
car parking) is not proposed. Therefore, in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation, as the Community Council has objected, the application has been 
referred to the Committee for determination. Furthermore, 14 letters of objection to 
the application were received from members of the public, which would have 
required the application to be determined by the Committee regardless of the 
Community Council objection. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Consultee Date of Comments  Comments Made 

ACC - Roads 
Development 
Management 
Team 

13 October 2016 
 Based on part of the ground floor 

being used as class 10 space, 1 
parking space is required.  However, 
as the site is easy accessible via 
public transport (there is a bus stop 
across the road), and due to the site 
being within a CPZ this shortfall is 
acceptable. 

 Based on the first floor comprising of 
a 3 bedroom dwelling 2 parking 
spaces are required.  However, due to 
the sites continued use as dwelling, 
additional space requirements cannot 
be added retrospectively, therefore 
the shortfall is acceptable. 

 Based on the estimated floor area of 
170m2 (measured using the scale on 
the floor plan drawing), 6 parking 
spaces are required to accommodate 
the second floor office.  Again, due to 
the accessibility of the site, as well as 
the office staff likely working during 
the operational hours of the CPZ the 
shortfall is deemed acceptable. 

No objection to the application. 
 

Old Aberdeen 
Community 
Council 

12 September 2016 OACC support the application provided that: 
 

 Further car parking spaces would be 
provided within the grounds of the 
property; 

 The application is not used as a 

Page 51



APPLICATION REF: 161152/DPP 

precedent to allow future applications to 
convert additional floor area of No. 14 
Chanonry to Class 4 use; 

 The application is not used as a 
precedent to allow future applications for 
the conversion of any other Chanonry 
property to Class 4 use; and 

 The application may not be used as a 
precedent for converting the interior of the 
listed building in a manner which would 
detract from its use as a domestic 
property. 

 
The OACC object to the proposals if all of 
the above criteria are not applied to any 
recommendation to grant consent. 
 

 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
16 letters of representation were received. 14 of the letters state objections to the 
application, while two are in support of the proposals, provided the change of use 
would only apply to certain parts of the building and not set a precedent for the 
wholesale change of residential dwellings on the Chanonry for business use in the 
future. The concerns raised in the letters of objection can be summarised as follows: 
 

 Inadequate off-street car parking provision would result in an increase in on-
street parking in an already area already suffering from on-street parking 
congestion, thus having have a detrimental impact on the character and 
amenity of the area; 

 The proposed change of use would have a detrimental impact on the 
character and amenity of the residential area by way of introducing a non-
residential use to the property (and would thus be contrary to Policy H1 of the 
ALDP); 

 The area is zoned as wholly residential and non-residential uses are not 
permitted; 

 The proposals would have a detrimental impact on the character of the Old 
Aberdeen Conservation Area; 

 The approval of the proposed change of use would set an undesirable 
precedent for further applications to be approved on the street; 

 The increased traffic pressure would be detrimental to road and pedestrian 
safety; 

 The development would pose a threat to the preservation of the key 
characteristics of The Chanonry, as outlined in the City Council’s Old 
Aberdeen Conservation Area Character Appraisal;  

 The site notice erected outside the application property contained an incorrect 
description; 

Page 52



APPLICATION REF: 161152/DPP 

 Proposals for a part change of use elsewhere on the Chanonry have been 
refused planning permission in the past (7 Chanonry in 1987); 

 The use of the property as a Bishop’s residence would increase visitor 
numbers and events would occur at weekends and evenings.  

 The proposals would be contrary to Policies D3 (Sustainable and Active 
Travel and T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development) as no 
measures such as encouraging the use of alternatives to car travel have been 
proposed; 

 There is a title deed restriction for all properties on the Chanonry which 
prevents any property on the street being used for any purpose other than as 
a residential dwelling. 

 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) 
 
Historic Environment Scotland Policy Statement (HESPS) 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 (ALDP) 

 Policy H1 (Residential Areas) 

 Policy D5 (Built Heritage) 

 Policy D3 (Sustainable and Active Travel) 

 Policy T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development) 
 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (PALDP) 

 Policy H1 (Residential Areas) 

 Policy D4 (Historic Environment) 

 Policy T2 (Managing the Transport impact of Development) 

 Policy T3 (Sustainable and Active Travel) 
 
Old Aberdeen Conservation Area Character Appraisal 
 
Supplementary Guidance – Transport and Accessibility 
 
EVALUATION 
 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 
require that where, in making any determination under the planning acts, regard is to 
be had to the provisions of the Development Plan and that determination shall be 
made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the application unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise.     
 
Policy Context 
The application site lies within a residential area, as zoned in the Adopted Aberdeen 
Local Development Plan (ALDP). Policy H1 (Residential Areas) of the Adopted 
ALDP states that: 
 
Within existing residential areas, proposals for non-residential uses will be refused 
unless:  

Page 53



APPLICATION REF: 161152/DPP 

 
1. they are considered complementary to residential use; or  
2. it can be demonstrated that the use would cause no conflict with, or any nuisance 
to, the enjoyment of existing residential amenity. 
 
The site also lies within the Old Aberdeen Conservation Area and as such, any 
development in this area also requires to be assessed against Policy D5 (Built 
Heritage) of the ALDP. Policy D5 requires development within conservation areas to 
comply with Scottish Planning Policy and in doing so, such proposals must either 
preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the conservation area. 
 
It is therefore considered that main factors in assessing the appropriateness of the 
proposed part change of use of the building for office (Class 4) and religious 
activities associated to a religious body (Class 10) is acceptable, are whether the 
proposed development would have a detrimental impact on the character or amenity 
of the residential area, or upon the character or appearance of the Old Aberdeen 
Conservation Area. 
 
Impact on the character and amenity of the area 
It is important to note that the proposed use of the rooms at the top floor of the 
building as office space would not constitute an office in a traditional sense as it 
would not form a separate planning unit from the remainder of the dwelling and 
would be used on a small scale, associated with the functions of the resident Bishop. 
It is considered that given the office space would be wholly contained within the 
existing unit and could only be accessed via the remainder of the house, the 
potential for this space to be used in future by a more intensified, traditional Class 4 
office occupant, separate to the principal residential function of the building is 
minimal, as significant physical alterations would be required which would need 
listed building consent and planning permission. Whilst the conversion of a whole 
residential building to an office, or the creation of a self-contained, separate office 
unit within the curtilage of such a property would not likely be supported, it is 
considered in this instance that the circumstances of the office space and how it 
would be used would not have a detrimental impact on the character or amenity of 
the area. 
 
The applicant has confirmed that there are two full-time staff likely to be using the 
office space, as well as two part-time staff and two priests, on occasion. Office use 
itself would not have a detrimental impact on the amenity of the area by way of noise 
emissions or other such disturbances to neighbouring properties, although it is 
acknowledged that an increase in the number of people visiting the property could 
have an impact on the residential character of the area. Whilst the low number of 
staff using the office space is not likely to have any significant impact in this regard, 
the change of use of one of the ground floor rooms to allow for gatherings incidental 
to the functions of the Bishop and the Diocese would increase visitor numbers to the 
property.  
 
The applicant has confirmed in the supporting statement that they envisage social 
and evening functions taking place at the property, with the larger social functions 
taking place on an infrequent basis (approximately twice a year). These functions 
concern the wider use of the property than just the ground floor Parish Room 

Page 54



APPLICATION REF: 161152/DPP 

proposed and could be carried out by any resident in their own home without 
requiring planning consent. As such, it is not considered that these events are a 
material planning consideration in the determination of this application. 
 
Smaller more frequent events are proposed however which would likely take place in 
the designated Parish Room. These would include monthly talks (average 
attendance of approximately 25) and weekly Prayer Groups (average attendance of 
6-10 people). The increased number of visitors to the property would have some 
impact on the nature of the street. However, unlike a solely residential street where 
such visitor numbers may be immediately noticeable and therefore alter the 
character of the area, it is important to note the high frequency of footfall on the 
street from visitors to the adjacent St Machar Cathedral and Seaton Park. Regular 
visitors and passers-by form part of the character of the area and it is considered 
that the proposed office space and Parish Room would be of a sufficiently small 
scale and of a nature associated to the principal residential function to ensure that 
they would not have a significant detrimental impact on either the character or 
amenity of the area, in accordance with Policy H1 (Residential Areas) of the ALDP. 
 
Impact on the character and appearance of the conservation area 
This application seeks consent for the part change of use of sections of the building 
only and no external alterations to either the building or the wider property are 
proposed. Therefore, it is considered that the proposed development would preserve 
the appearance of the conservation area, in accordance with Scottish Planning 
Policy. It is, however, accepted that whilst not involving any physical alterations, the 
use of a building can contribute to the character of a conservation area, if not its 
appearance.  
 
Aside from the office space, the proposed Parish Room at ground floor level would 
be used for a variety of functions in relation to the Bishop’s activities, as mentioned 
previously. The size of the dwellings and associated plots of the majority of the 
properties on Chanonry are considerably larger than that of a typical dwellinghouse 
and as such, social gatherings would be easier to accommodate within such a plot 
without having significant detriment to the area. Furthermore, St Machar Cathedral is 
a major tourist attraction for Aberdeen and it sits directly opposite the application 
site, with the popular Seaton Park just beyond. The result is a street with a high 
footfall, frequented by visitors and passers-by on a daily basis, year round. 
Therefore, although the majority of the properties on the street are residential in 
nature, it is considered that the amount of floorspace within the building proposed to 
be used as office space and a parish room associated with the resident’s work would 
be of a sufficiently small scale to ensure that the increased intensity of activity would 
not be significant enough to impact detrimentally upon, or alter the character of, the 
conservation area. 
 
Subject to conditions, the proposed development is therefore considered to preserve 
both the character and appearance of the conservation area, in accordance with the 
general principles of Scottish Planning Policy and thus by default, Policy D5 (Built 
Heritage) of the Adopted Aberdeen Local Development Plan. 
 
Impact on the character of the listed building 

Page 55



APPLICATION REF: 161152/DPP 

The proposed part-change of use does not involve any physical alterations to the 
fabric of the listed building and it is not considered that the proposals would have any 
detrimental impact on the special character of the listed building, nor upon its setting. 
Any future proposals to carry out physical works to the building would require listed 
building consent. 
 
Conditions 
In order to ensure that the office use of the top floor of the building remains 
associated to the resident occupying the building and therefore of a suitably small 
scale and intensity so as not to have a detrimental impact on the character and 
amenity of the area, it is considered appropriate to attach conditions which restrict 
the use of the office space to the rooms identified in the approved drawings and also 
to restrict the use of the office space to be ancillary to the functions of the applicant, 
the Roman Catholic Diocese of Aberdeen.  
 
Whilst personalised conditions restricting the use of a building (or part thereof) are 
not normally used, it is considered necessary in this instance to attach such a 
condition as the specific details pertaining to the applicant’s requirements ensure 
that the intensity of the use would be of an appropriate scale for this residential area. 
It is important that the planning authority retains a level of control over the use of the 
proposed office rooms in order that any future proposal by another party to intensify 
the office use would be assessed accordingly. 
 
As no physical alterations are proposed either internally or externally, the top floor 
office space would only be accessed via the remainder of the dwelling and not via a 
separate access. This element is important in ensuring that the office space remains 
suitably associated to the functions of the resident. Whilst it may be usually be 
appropriate to add a condition which ensures that the office element remains within 
the same planning unit as the remainder of the dwelling, in this instance the 
application relates to a listed building and it would not be possible to separate the 
office space from the remainder of the dwelling without requiring further consent from 
the planning authority. Therefore, a suitable level of control is retained in this regard 
and it is not considered necessary to add a condition to this effect. 
 
Parking and sustainable methods of transport 
The property at present has 3 off-street car parking spaces and is eligible for 2 on-
street parking permits. The area lies within a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) and 
there is pay-and-display on-street car parking provision opposite the building and 
elsewhere on the Chanonry, adjacent to Seaton Park. The Roads Development 
Management Team has evaluated the proposed mixed-use development and 
considers that given the close proximity of the site to public transport links and the 
site being located within a CPZ, the level of parking available to the property at 
present is appropriate for the proposed development.  
 
Policy D3 (Sustainable and Active Travel) of the ALDP requires new development to 
be designed in order to minimise travel by private car and to encourage active travel, 
whilst Policy T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development) requires new 
developments to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been taken to minimise 
traffic generated. Whilst such measures have not been proposed as part of the 
application, a condition has been attached requiring a suitable cycle parking facility 

Page 56



APPLICATION REF: 161152/DPP 

to be agreed upon and put in place prior to the occupation of the rooms in question, 
in order to encourage cycling and to reduce the amount of car journeys made to the 
address.   
 
The number and frequency of visitors to the property is unlikely to be particularly 
high, especially for the office element and it is considered that the proximity of St 
Machar Drive to the application site would encourage the use of public and 
sustainable transport, that the amount of parking spaces available to the property is 
adequate and that the proposals would not have a significant impact on the existing 
on-street parking situation. 
 
Concerns raised by the Old Aberdeen Community Council 
The OACC stated their support for the proposals on the basis that the four conditions 
be met as part of any approval. The conditions can be assessed as follows: 
 

 Further car parking spaces should be provided within the grounds of the 
property 
In accordance with the applicable ALDP policies and the Council’s 
supplementary guidance, it was considered that the number of parking spaces 
available to the property (both on and off-street) is suitable for the proposed 
development. No additional off-street car parking spaces are proposed as part 
of this application and indeed, the formation of any additional spaces may 
have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the 
conservation area and the setting of the listed building. Additional spaces 
have therefore not been requested. 

 

 The application is not used as a precedent to allow future applications to 
convert additional floor area of No. 14 Chanonry to Class 4 use 
The proposed development is considered to be acceptable due to the small 
scale of the proposed floor space and operations. A condition has been 
attached to any consent which restricts the change of use element to the 
rooms shown on the approved drawings. 

 

 The application is not used as a precedent to allow future applications for the 
conversion of any other Chanonry property to Class 4 use 
It is considered that the circumstances in this application mean that the small 
scale office use, associated with the principal residential function of the 
building, wholly contained within the same planning unit at No. 14 Chanonry 
would be appropriate. Whilst every application is assessed on its own merits, 
it is considered that the conversion of a whole property on the Chanonry from 
residential to Class 4 office use would most likely not be appropriate and it is 
not considered that a precedent for such development would be set by the 
granting of consent in this instance. 

 

 The application may not be used as a precedent for converting the interior of 
the listed building in a manner which would detract from its use as a domestic 
property 
No physical alterations to either the interior or exterior of the building are 
proposed, either as part of this application or any other planning/listed building 
consent application. Any future proposals for such would be assessed on their 

Page 57



APPLICATION REF: 161152/DPP 

own merits and any works deemed to have a detrimental impact on the 
character of the listed building would be unlikely to be supported by the 
Council.  

 
Points raised in letters of objection 
Concerns raised by objectors in relation to the following issues have been addressed 
in the foregoing evaluation: 
 

 Inadequate off-street car parking provision; 

 Impact on the character and amenity of the residential area by way of 
introducing a non-residential use; 

 Impact on the character of the Old Aberdeen Conservation Area; 

 Impact on pedestrian safety; 

 The use of the property as a Bishop’s residence would increase visitor 
numbers and events would occur at weekends and evenings.  

 
The remaining concerns can be addressed as follows: 
 

 The area is zoned as wholly residential and non-residential uses are not 
permitted 
The area is zoned in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan as a ‘Residential 
Area’ and is thus covered by Policy H1 (Residential Areas). Policy H1 
supports non-residential uses in residential areas provided they are 
complementary to, or would not adversely affect the amenity of, the residential 
area. 

 

 The approval of the proposed change of use would set an undesirable 
precedent for further applications to be approved on the street 
Each planning application is assessed on its own merits. The proposed 
change of use in this instance would allow for administration duties associated 
with the activities of the applicant to be carried out on a small scale, without 
diminishing the residential nature of the property or having detriment to the 
character or amenity of the area, in accordance with the relevant policies of 
the ALDP.    

 

 The development would pose a threat to the preservation of the key 
characteristics of The Chanonry, as outlined in the City Council’s Old 
Aberdeen Conservation Area Character Appraisal 
The Old Aberdeen Conservation Area Character Appraisal makes reference 
to ‘The Chanonry development’, describing it as ‘residential properties set in 
spacious walled grounds.’ Whilst it is acknowledged that the change of use of 
the entire building at 14 Chanonry to a non-residential use could have a 
detrimental impact on the character of the area, the small-scale nature of the 
part-change of use proposed in this application would see the property’s 
principal function remain as a residential dwelling and it is considered that the 
proposed development would not pose a threat to the preservation of the key 
characteristics of The Chanonry, as outlined in the Old Aberdeen 
Conservation Area Character Appraisal. 

 

Page 58



APPLICATION REF: 161152/DPP 

 The site notice erected outside the application property contained an incorrect 
description 
The public notice erected at the site was actually for a corresponding listed 
building consent application which was subsequently withdrawn as the 
applicant is not proposing to carry out any physical alterations to the building. 
Therefore listed building consent is not required. It was deemed by the 
Council, as planning authority, that the planning application did not require to 
be advertised and no site notice was placed for this application, although it is 
acknowledged that the placing of an advert for the listed building consent 
application could have led to confusion amongst members of the public. 

 

 Proposals for a part change of use elsewhere on the Chanonry have been 
refused planning permission in the past (7 Chanonry in 1987) 
The application for No. 7 Chanonry was made some 29 years ago and the 
Council’s planning policies and guidance have changed significantly in that 
time. The current proposal is for office space associated to the resident of the 
building, with that space to be wholly contained within the same planning unit, 
only accessible through the rest of the dwelling and not a self-contained unit. 

 

 There is a title deed restriction for all properties on the Chanonry which 
prevents any property on the street being used for any purpose other than as 
a residential dwelling 
Title deed restrictions do not constitute a material planning consideration and 
instead constitute a civic legal matter over which the Council has no control in 
the planning process. 
 

 The increased traffic pressure would be detrimental to road and pedestrian 
safety 
The street is already relatively heavily trafficked with vehicles and pedestrians 
due to the amount of visitors to St Machar Cathedral and Seaton Park. The 
proposed use would be of a relatively small scale and intensity and would not 
result in a significant increase in vehicles using the street to the extent where 
it would be detrimental to road or pedestrian safety. 

 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
The Proposed ALDP was approved for submission for Examination by Scottish 
Ministers at the meeting of the Communities, Housing and Infrastructure Committee 
of 27 October 2015 and the Reporter has now reported back. The proposed plan 
constitutes the Council’s settled view as to what should be the content of the final 
adopted ALDP and is now a material consideration in the determination of planning 
applications, along with the adopted ALDP. The exact weight to be given to matters 
contained in the Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to specific 
applications will depend on whether: 
 

 these matters have been subject to comment by the Reporter; and 

 the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration. 
 
The Reporters response does not affect policies in a manner that is relevant to this 
application. In relation to this particular application proposal policies in the Proposed 
LDP are not materially different from those in the adopted LDP. 

Page 59



APPLICATION REF: 161152/DPP 

 
Approval to adopt the LDP will be sought at Full Council meeting of 14th December. 
The actual adoption date is likely to be around the third week in January. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Conditionally 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed change of use of parts of the building for office and public room uses 
associated with the operational requirements of the Diocese of Aberdeen, whose 
Bishop would live at the property, would be of a sufficiently small scale and intensity 
of use to ensure that they would not have a detrimental impact either the character 
or amenity of the surrounding area, in accordance with Policy H1 (Residential Areas) 
of the Adopted Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP). No physical alterations to 
the building are proposed and it is therefore considered that the character of the 
listed building and the wider Old Aberdeen Conservation Area would be maintained, 
in accordance with the principles of Scottish Planning Policy, Historic Environment 
Scotland’s Policy Statement and Policy D5 (Built Heritage) of the ALDP. The site is 
in close proximity to good public transport links and subject to a condition requiring 
secure cycle storage provision, it is considered that the proposed development 
would not result in significant on-street car parking issues and would encourage the 
use of public transport, in accordance with Policies D3 (Sustainable and Active 
Travel) and T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development) of the ALDP. The 
proposed change of use is also considered to comply with the relevant 
corresponding policies (H1, D4, T2 and T3) of the Proposed Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan. 
 
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1) That the office use hereby approved shall be restricted to the rooms on the 
top floor of the building identified in drawing number 4074-GA-302 and these 
rooms shall only be used in connection with providing administrative support 
for the activities and functions of the applicant, The Roman Catholic Diocese 
of Aberdeen.  
 
Reason – In order that the primary residential function of the building is 
retained and that the office use remains associated with that use and of a 
sufficiently small scale to protect the character and amenity of the area.  

 
2) That the Class 10 use hereby approved shall be restricted to the Parish Room 

at ground floor level as identified in drawing number 4074-GA-300 and this 
room shall only be used in connection with the activities and function of the 
applicant, The Roman Catholic Diocese of Aberdeen. 
 
Reason – In order that the primary residential function of the building is 
retained and that the Class 10 use remains associated with the functions of 

Page 60



APPLICATION REF: 161152/DPP 

the resident and of a sufficiently small scale to protect the character and 
amenity of the area.  

 
3) That the rooms hereby granted planning permission for change of use shall 

not be occupied unless a scheme detailing cycle parking provision has been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the planning authority, and thereafter 
implemented in full accordance with said scheme. 
 
Reason – In the interests of encouraging more sustainable modes of travel. 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Development Management 
Planning and Sustainable Development 
Aberdeen City Council 
Business Hub 4, Marischal College 
Broad Street, Aberdeen 
AB10 1AB 

107 High Street 
Old Aberdeen  
AB24 3EN 
webadmin@oldaberdeen.org.uk 
Tel 01224 485 506 
 
12th September 2016 

 
Dear Mr Ferguson 
 
Planning application 161152 regarding 14 The Chanonry – conversion of top floor to Class 4 use 
 
Many members of the Old Aberdeen community have expressed strong concerns about the impact 
of this proposal. Their concerns are centred upon: 

• Impact on precedent 
• Impact on parking 
• Impact on traffic 

 
This proposed change of use from domestic to business would, on principle, normally be 
unacceptable in a historic conservation area rated as H1 Residential.  
 
We note in particular that change of use from domestic to business is not, in principle, acceptable in 
a historic conservation area rated as H1 Residential which excludes business use. 
We note that Aberdeen City Council rejected an application for change of use to Class 4 for a similar 
domestic property - no.7 The Chanonry, on 1st October 1987 on the grounds of: 

1. Detrimental to the character and amenity of the area by reason of the introduction  of a 
commercial use into a wholly residential area 

2. Be contrary to the Council's Conservation Area policy 
3. Be prejudicial to public safety by reason of the likely increase  in traffic generation in The 

Chanonry which is a residential street incapable of coping with additional traffic flows 
4. Have a deleterious effect on the listed building in particular and the conservation area in 

general. 
 
The OACC considers that nothing has changed between 1987 and 2016 that could change any of 
those arguments. However, this application is for an ecclesiastic office rather than a commercial use 
and the OACC has noted that this specific application echoes the original medieval use of this street 
and could be considered exceptional.  
OACC are therefore prepared to support this application provided the following qualifications can be 
built into any approval: 

i) That further car parking spaces (not to exceed a total of a further 6 spaces) will be provided 
within the grounds of the property. 

ii) That this application may not be used as a precedent for any future application by this or any 
other applicant to convert additional floor area of no.14 The Chanonry to Class 4 use 

iii) That this application may not be used as a precedent for any future application by this or any 
other applicant to convert any other property within The Chanonry to Class 4 use 

Page 63

mailto:webadmin@oldaberdeen.org.uk


iv) That this application may not be used as a precedent for converting any part of the interior 
of this Category B listed building in a manner that would detract from its use as a domestic 
property. 

  
If ACC deems that it is not appropriate, or practical, to introduce such qualifications to help meet the 
concerns of the community, then the OACC must OBJECT to this proposal as it currently stands. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
Dewi Morgan 
For Old Aberdeen Community Council 
 
 

Page 64



Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



AHSS National Office 

15 Rutland Square 

Edinburgh 

EH1 2BE 

0131 557 0019 

nationaloffice@ahss.org.uk 

  
THE ARCHITECTURAL 

HERITAGE SOCIETY 

OF SCOTLAND 

 

President: Simon Green MA FSA FSA Scot 

 

 

Chairman: Michael C. Davis 

The Architectural Heritage Society of Scotland (AHSS) is a registered charity: SC007554REG 

The Society is registered as a Company Limited by Guarantee: SC356726 
 

PLEASE REPLY TO: 

AHSS NORTH EAST GROUP 
Kelly Morrison – Secretary 

c/o 57 Gladstone Place, Aberdeen AB10 6UX 

 
22 September 2016 

For attention of Alex Ferguson 

Planning and Sustainable Development 

Aberdeen City Council  
Business Hub 4 

Marischal College 

Broad Street 

Aberdeen  

AB10 1AB 

 

BY EMAIL 

 
Dear Sirs, 

 

Planning Application Ref: 161152 

Site Address: 14 The Chanonry, Old Aberdeen AB24 1RP 

Description: Part change of use from class 9 (residential) to mixed use, associated to the 

Diocese of Aberdeen, incorporating: class 10 (activities associated to a religious body) at part 

of ground floor, and class 4 (offices) at 2nd floor.  

 
As a heritage organisation, The Architectural Heritage Society of Scotland is supportive of any 

initiatives aimed at retaining historic buildings in use in an appropriate and complementary 

manner. 

Having considered the application at our most -recent Cases Panel, we concluded that we 

could not support the proposals as presented, and as such we object. This decision is made 

on the following grounds: 

- Limited information was included in the Application ; therefore, the impact of the 

proposal cannot be adequately assessed, particularly in relation to the nature of the proposed 

uses. 

- Detrimental to the character of the Old Aberdeen Conservation Area.  The proposed 

change of use would also mean a material change of use of the surrounding largely-residential  

area, which is unacceptable, in accordance with the local authority’s own guidelines. 

- Negative impact on amenity. Introducing a class 4 use into a residential area is not 

compatible with other uses in the area, in accordance with the local authority’s own guideline.  

- It might set an undesirable precedent. If approved against the backdrop of the above, 

it would be difficult to reject similar applications in the future. 

Page 67

mailto:nationaloffice@ahss.org.uk


 
 

  

The Architectural Heritage Society of Scotland (AHSS) is a registered charity: SC007554REG 

The Society is registered as a Company Limited by Guarantee: SC356726 
 

- Negative impact on parking, road safety and vehicular traffic.  No provisions to mitigate 

adverse effects of increased activity from office use. 

- Possible negative affect on a Listed Building. Whilst this representation mainly deals with 

the principle of the proposed change of use, and its potential effect, one cannot help to think 

whether the proposal, if accepted, would result in internal changes to the property which is a 

listed building, and any future creation of car park spaces. 

From the above, we conclude that the proposals are not in accordance with the policy of the 

Scottish Government nor local authority policies and guidelines, and as such we are unable to 

support the proposals as they stand.  

Please refer to the attached report for details of the basis of our views. 

We would welcome the opportunity to review the further proposals for this property in due 

course. 

I trust this is sufficient for your purposes. 

Yours faithfully, 

 

David Ballok 

On behalf of AHSS North East Group Cases Panel  

Page 68



1

Evgenia Tsichritzi

From:
Sent: 02 September 2016 11:44
To: PI
Subject: Planning application 161152

I would like to comment on the application by the Catholic Diocese of Aberdeen for permission to use the premises at 
14 The Chanonry as offices and meeting rooms. As a former resident in Old Aberdeen I would ask the planning 
Department and Planning Committee to consider very carefully the precedent they would be setting in granting this 
application. The Chanonry is a residential area of historic importance and granting this application would open the door 
to many more applications for commercial use which would eventually destroy the unique atmosphere of The 
Chanonry. Old Aberdeen is a jewel in the crown of the city and I hope the application will be refused. 
 
 
Mrs Caroline Gimingham 
9 Florence Court 
402 North Deeside Road 
Cults 
Aberdeen AB 15 9 TD 
 
Sent from my iPad 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Comments for Planning Application 161152/DPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 161152/DPP

Address: 14 The Chanonry Aberdeen AB24 1RP

Proposal: Part change of use from class 9 (residential) to mixed use, associated to the Diocese of

Aberdeen, incorporating: class 10 (activities associated to a religious body) at part of ground floor,

and Class 4 (offices) at 2nd floor.

Case Officer: Alex Ferguson

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr David Craik

Address: 111-113 High Street Aberdeen

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:I would have a number of objections:

1) This is a family neighbourhood not a business district

2) On street parking is sparce for residents and visitors without providing for additional workers

3) Further traffic would add additional dangers for pedestrians and existing users into an already

precarious area.

4) What is to prevent other businesses following suit?

Thanks

David

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Comments for Planning Application 161152/DPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 161152/DPP

Address: 14 The Chanonry Aberdeen AB24 1RP

Proposal: Part change of use from class 9 (residential) to mixed use, associated to the Diocese of

Aberdeen, incorporating: class 10 (activities associated to a religious body) at part of ground floor,

and Class 4 (offices) at 2nd floor.

Case Officer: Alex Ferguson

 

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Elizabeth Hepburn

Address: 4 St Machar Place Aberdeen

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:It would be very unfortunate to spoil the character of the chanonry in the heart of a

conservation area by change of use to office accommodation. This would set a very unfortunate

precedent which could lead to further such applications for similar change of use of other houses

in the chanonry being allowed.

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Evgenia Tsichritzi

From: HAZEL CHRISTIE 
Sent: 23 September 2016 14:15
To: PI
Subject: Planning application 161152 regarding 14 The Chanonry - OBJECTION

To: 
Development Management 
Planning and Sustainable Development 
Aberdeen City Counci 
 
From: 
Mrs Hazel Christie 
1 Thoms Court 
Old Aberdeen 
AB24 3ED 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Planning application 161152 regarding 14 The Chanonry 
 
I am writing to OBJECT to the above application. 
 
I believe that the introduction of office use to a residential property in a conservation residential area would be detrimental to the whole area in 
general.  It would set a dangerous precedent as there are a number of large properties in the area which could also be converted to office space. 
 
The impact on traffic in the area appears to be significant;  

 7 people per day plus 
 10 people per week plus 
 25 people per month. 

Which adds up to potentially an additional 200+ visitors to the area per month.   
 
This part of The Chanonry is a one-way street so all the traffic would have to travel around to Don Street and up to St Machar Drive to exit the 
area.  I believe this additional traffic would be detrimental to these streets and pose an additional safety risk to the area. Don Street in particular is 
narrow and cobbled by Bede House before rejoining St Machar Drive. 
 
Kind regards 
Mrs H Christie 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Comments for Planning Application 161152/DPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 161152/DPP

Address: 14 The Chanonry Aberdeen AB24 1RP

Proposal: Part change of use from class 9 (residential) to mixed use, associated to the Diocese of

Aberdeen, incorporating: class 10 (activities associated to a religious body) at part of ground floor,

and Class 4 (offices) at 2nd floor.

Case Officer: Alex Ferguson

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Richard Harwood

Address: Not Available

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:Dear sir / Madam.

I would like to make an objection to the following planning application.

Aberdeen planning applications 161152 regarding 14 The Chanonry

On the lack of information regarding use and population of the planed offices.

I believe that this change of use will have a detrimental effect on the amenity and character of the

area with regards to the extra parking required by the staff and visitors transport. There are double

yellow lines outside number 14 and very little parking available in the private ground of the

property.

The introduction of a business in a solely residential historic area will send the wrong message to

other groups looking for a prestigious address for their company.

Since this would be the Bishops residence it will more than likely also mean further visitors and

events during the weekends and evenings causing further disruption and congestion outside and

in surrounding areas.

A similar application for this area was submitted and refused in 1987 and nothing has changed

since and therefore this objection should stand.

Regards

Richard Harwood

 

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



Comments for Planning Application 161152/DPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 161152/DPP

Address: 14 The Chanonry Aberdeen AB24 1RP

Proposal: Part change of use from class 9 (residential) to mixed use, associated to the Diocese of

Aberdeen, incorporating: class 10 (activities associated to a religious body) at part of ground floor,

and Class 4 (offices) at 2nd floor.

Case Officer: Alex Ferguson

 

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Susan Spence

Address: Not Available

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer made comments in support of the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dear Sirs.

 

Application Ref: 161152/DPP

14 The Chanonry Aberdeen AB24 1RP

Change of Use from Class 4 (residential) to Class 8 (business)

 

 

I refer to the above application.

 

I am supportive of the idea of a limited change of use of No 14 with the provisos below: -

 

- That the grant makes it clear that the property is principally for residential use with the change to

business use being limited to around 63m2 of the uppermost floor and one room on the ground

floor of the property .I believe that the Council has the authority to impose this conditionality; and

 

- that the Council makes it clear that any additional parking later applied for should be limited to 2

Page 103



spaces and any changes required to accommodate the additional vehicles are in keeping with the

appearance of the property.

 

I appreciate that changes to parking do not form part of this application but there is obviously an

intention to apply for additional parking at a later stage. It would have been helpful to understand

what is planned for the property before being asked to make representations .I am very concerned

about unintended consequences of accepting what appears on first reading to be a limited change

of use of part of the property.

 

My reservations about a blanket change of use of the building are as follow :-

 

Affect on the Conservation Area - If the change is not limited to part of the house then I believe it

would have a detrimental affect on the Conservation Area.

 

Business use of the whole of No 14 would be inappropriate within area B, the heart of Old

Aberdeen Conservation area, and in particular the Chanonry as characterized in the Aberdeen

City Conservation Area Character Appraisals and Management Plan. : -

 

" The Chanonry Development - residential properties set in spacious walled grounds ...

St. Machars Cathedral and its setting ...

Distinguished gateways ..."

 

It would also be out of step with the " H1 - Residential " use prescribed for the building within the

Local Development Plan.

 

That plan allows other use which is complementary to the residential use of the property .A limited

change to allow some Church Offices to sit alongside the Bishop's home fits these criteria but

these limited changes would need to be embedded in conditions of grant.

 

Precedent - If the change of use is granted without restriction then the Precedent is set for more of

the residential heart of the Old Aberdeen conservation area to become businesses or offices

bearing in mind the requirement within the planning framework to treat citizens fairly.

I think that would be an unfortunate consequence where sufficient conditionality embedded in the

grant would protect the nature of the area.

 

Procedural flaws - some of the detail of the application and the documents attached to it appear

inconsistent and I am not convinced that the planning process has been fully complied with as a

result.

 

1. The notice posted on the lamppost outside number 14 on 24th August refers to change of Use

to Class 2 rather than Class 4 and has no date entered by which comments are to be submitted. I

do not believe that this constitutes competent notice

Page 104



 

2. Reference in all the notices is made to a change of use from Class 8. I would have thought that

should be class 9?

 

3. One room on the Existing Ground Floor Plan is labelled as a

" Parish Office". I believe this has for the past 12 years at least been a bedroom. This is

consequently a change which is not being properly described or made clear to anyone

commenting who has not been in the house .

 

4. Under the heading "Access and Parking" on the Application it is stated that there is no parking

on the property. This is incorrect. There is space for 3/4 cars in the driveway of No 14 with 2

residents parking permits available for on street parking.

 

 

 

If this grant is made under the appropriate conditions as outlined then I believe that this would

allow good use of No 14 The Chanonry without an adverse effect on its nature within the

conservation area.

 

 

Yours faithfully,

 

 

 

Susan A. Spence

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



AHSS National Office 

15 Rutland Square 

Edinburgh 

EH1 2BE 

0131 557 0019 

nationaloffice@ahss.org.uk 

  
THE ARCHITECTURAL 

HERITAGE SOCIETY 

OF SCOTLAND 

 

President: Simon Green MA FSA FSA Scot 

 

 

Chairman: Michael C. Davis  

The Architectural Heritage Society of Scotland (AHSS) is a registered charity: SC007554REG 

The Society is registered as a Company Limited by Guarantee: SC356726 

 The Architectural Heritage Society of Scotland (AHSS) is a registered charity: SC007554REG 

The Society is registered as a Company Limited by Guarantee: SC356726 

 

PLEASE REPLY TO: 

AHSS NORTH EAST GROUP 
Kelly Morrison – Secretary 

c/o 57 Gladstone Place, Aberdeen AB10 6UX 

 
21 September 2016 

 

Planning Application Ref: 161152 

Site Address: 14 The Chanonry, Old Aberdeen AB24 1RP 

Description: Part change of use from class 9 (residential) to mixed use, associated to the 

Diocese of Aberdeen, incorporating: class 10 (activities associated to a religious body) at part 

of ground floor, and class 4 (offices) at 2nd floor. 

 

Objection 
1. The Society wishes to object to the proposal on the following grounds:  

- Limited information was included in the Application; therefore, the impact of the 

proposal cannot be adequately assessed, particularly in relation to the nature of the 

proposed uses. 

- Detrimental to the character of the Old Aberdeen Conservation Area. The proposed 

change of use would also mean a material change of use of the surrounding largely -

residential area, which is unacceptable, in accordance with the local authority’s own 

guidelines. 

- Negative impact on amenity. Introducing a class 4 use into a residential area is not 

compatible with other uses in the area, in accordance with the local authority’s own 

guideline. 

- It might set an undesirable precedent. If approved against the backdrop of the above, 

it would be difficult to reject similar applications in the future.  

- Negative impact on parking, road safety and vehicular traffic. No provisions to mitigate 

adverse effects of increased activity from office use. 

- Possible negative affect on a Listed Building. Whilst this representation mainly deals with 

the principle of the proposed change of use, and its potential effect, one cannot help 

to think whether the proposal, if accepted, would result in internal changes to the 

property which is a listed building, and any future creation of car park spaces.  

It would seem reasonable to conclude that the proposal is not in accordance with the 

policy of the Scottish Government and local guidance. 

 

Introduction 
2. In 1987 a change of use application (87/1229) to allow two ground floor rooms in 7 The 

Chanonry to be used as offices for five years was refused on the grounds that ‘the proposal, 

if implemented, would (1) be detrimental to the amenity and character of the area by 

reason of introduction of a commercial use into a wholly residential area; (2) be contrary 

to the Council’s Conservation Area policy; (3) be prejudicial to public safety by reason of 

the likely increase in traffic generation in The Chanonry which is a residential street  

incapable of coping with additional traffic flows; and (4) have a deleterious effect both 

on the listed building in particular and on the Conservation Area in general’.  

Page 107

mailto:nationaloffice@ahss.org.uk


 
 

  

The Architectural Heritage Society of Scotland (AHSS) is a registered charity: SC007554REG 

The Society is registered as a Company Limited by Guarantee: SC356726 
 

 

3. The Architectural Heritage Society of Scotland (AHSS) objected to the 1987 application 

and at this point we see no reason to deviate from that position. It is appreciated that the 

current proposal was submitted on behalf of the Bishop of Aberdeen (not by a 

businessman, as in 1987), and the property would continue to function as a residential 

building with the exception of the four rooms on the uppermost floor and part of the 

ground floor. There is an argument that the proposal would be acceptable if it was granted 

on the condition that it is in place while the Bishop of Aberdeen or the RC Diocese of 

Aberdeen owns the property and lapses once the property changes hands. However, one 

could entertain a doubt as to how one could then justify the refusal of similar applications 

in the future as this could discriminate against non-religious bodies (or other religious 

bodies) who would apply for class 4 use in this area to carry out business activities. It could 

be argued that the fact that the ‘business’ in this case is the Diocese of Aberdeen is, insofar 

as the class 4 (offices) part of the Application is concerned, irrelevant. The Society has no 

objection to the proposed class 10 use. 

 

Scottish Planning Policy 

4. Scottish Local Authorities, in the exercise of their planning functions, are under a statuto ry 

obligation to preserve or enhance the character or appearance of a conservation area. 1 

Scottish Government policy further elaborates this statutory obligation. One of the stated 

aims of the Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) is ‘to achieve the right development in the right 

place; it is not to allow development at any cost’2. In relation to proposals for business and 

industrial uses SPP requires that proposals ‘should take into account surrounding sensitive 

uses, areas of particular natural sensitivity or interest and local amenity, and make a 

positive contribution towards placemaking’3. There is a recognition that change, which 

means more than alterations to the fabric of the building, should be managed sensibly:  

‘The layout, design, materials, scale, siting and use of any development which will affect a 

listed building or its setting should be appropriate to the character and appearance of the 

building and setting.’4 Accordingly, SPP expects that ‘proposals for development within 

conservation areas (… ) should preserve or enhance the character and appearance of 

the conservation area.’5  

5. We do not consider that the Application follows the above principles. To put it simply, 

insofar as the class 4 use is concerned, it is not the right development in the right pl ace. 

Even if the proposal had no adverse impact on the building or the appreciation thereof 

(which is doubtful), it would more than likely to have an adverse impact on the character 

of the conservation area which would go against the requirement that propo sals ‘should 

take into account surrounding sensitive uses (… ) and local amenity’. It also makes no 

provisions in relation to sustainable transport and travel patterns.  

The Application is not in accordance with Scottish Planning Policy.  
 

Scottish Historic Environment Policy 
6. Conservation areas are living places and change may be necessary; however, it also must 

be carefully managed to protect the character and appearance of conservation areas.  

Scottish Government planning advice recognises that, in order to  realise their potential, 

‘many of them need to continue to adapt and develop in response to the modern -day 

needs and aspirations of living and working communities’ 6.  

7. The Scottish Historic Environment Policy (SHEP) provides further guidance whilst recogni sing 

that the ‘protection of the historic environment is not about preventing change’, but that 

any change ‘should be managed intelligently and with understanding, to achieve the best 

                                                 
1 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997, s 64(1). 

2 Scottish Government, Scottish Planning Policy (2014) para 28. 
3 ibid para 108. 

4 ibid para 141. 

5 ibid para 143. 
6 Scottish Executive, Conservation Area Managem ent  (PAN 71, 2004), 4. 

Page 108



 
 

  

The Architectural Heritage Society of Scotland (AHSS) is a registered charity: SC007554REG 

The Society is registered as a Company Limited by Guarantee: SC356726 
 

outcome for the historic environment and for the people of Scotland’ 7. There seems to be 

a presumption against change of use. One of the key principles to take into account when 

considering the impact of proposals is to ‘ensure that any proposed change of use is 

necessary’8. If the full impact of any proposed action cannot be adequately assessed 

change should be avoided.9  

8. The Application is silent on whether the change of use would lead to alterations to the 

interior (such as the installation of fire doors), which would, presumably, require a Listed 

Building Consent. There is no indication on the attached plans as to which ground floor 

rooms would be class 10 use.  

The Application contains insufficient information and accordingly, its impact on the historic 

environment cannot be adequately assessed.  

 

Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
9. The property is a category B listed building and lies within the Old Aberdeen Conservation 

Area which has a mixture of uses; however, The Chanonry, the immediate area within 

which the property lies, is wholly residential (with the exception of St Machar’s Cathedral).  

According to the conservation area character appraisal The Chanonry is ‘now 

characterised by large, mainly detached Georgian and some 19th century, residential 

properties set in large gardens and bounded by impressive walls’ 10. A number of policies 

of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan may be relevant.  

10.  Policy H1 Residential Areas states that proposals for non-residential uses within existing 

residential areas will be refused unless:  

1. they are considered complementary to residential use; or 

2. it can be demonstrated that the use would cause no conflict with, or any nuisance to, 

the enjoyment of existing residential amenity.11 

11.  The Supporting Statement notes that ‘the intended “office” use of the top -most floor of the 

building is principally to provide necessary administrative functions in support of the 

Bishop’s various pastoral activities. It is, perhaps, a unique situation and is not a “normal” 

office/commercial use in the usual sense of that term.’ While the applicants’ point is not 

entirely without merit one could reasonably argue that a possible definition of normal office 

use ‘in the usual sense of that term’ is ‘providing administrative functions in support of’ the 

various activities of the particular organisation’s senior officer – the fact that organisation 

in question is a religious one (it could be a charitable one) and the executive in question is 

a bishop (could very well be a CEO of a charitable body) is of no consequence. There is 

nothing in the legislation which appears to support applicants’ assertion that, inasmuch as 

the class 4 use concerned, the administrative activities carried out by religious bodies are 

unique or unusual. However, if the proposed use is indeed unique, or particular to religious 

organisations, then the second floor ‘office’ should be covered by the class 10 (non-

residential institutions) use12 – which would not be objectionable.  

12.  The onus is on the applicants to demonstrate that their proposals meet the criteria set out 

in the Local Development Plan. Having considered the Application (and the Supporting 

Statement attached thereto) it seems that there is some difficulty in arriving to the 

conclusion that the proposed class 4 office use could be carried out without any 

detrimental impact on the character or amenity of the area.  

Introducing a class 4 office use into this residential area is not compatible with other uses in the 

area. 

                                                 
7 Historic Scotland, Scottish Historic Environment Policy (2011) para 1.8. 

8 ibid para 1.34. 

9 ibid. 
10 Aberdeen City Council, Conservation Area Character Appraisals and Managem ent Plan: Old 

Aberdeen (2015), 27. 

11 Aberdeen City Council, Aberdeen Local Developm ent Plan (2012) 37. 
12 Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997, SI 1997/3061, sch 1, para 10(g). 

Page 109



 
 

  

The Architectural Heritage Society of Scotland (AHSS) is a registered charity: SC007554REG 

The Society is registered as a Company Limited by Guarantee: SC356726 
 

13.  According to Policy D5 Built Heritage, ‘Proposals affecting Conservation Areas or Listed 

Buildings will only be permitted if they comply with Scottish Planning Policy.’13 

The Application is not in accordance with this policy. (See paragraph 5.) 
14.  Travel and transport related policies, including supplementary guidance, might also be 

relevant. Policy T2 Managing the Transport Impact of Development notes that, ‘New 

developments will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been taken to 

minimise the traffic generated.’ Policy D3 Sustainable and Active Travel requires new 

development to ‘minimise travel by private car, improve access to services and promote 

healthy lifestyles by encouraging active travel’. Developments are also required to ensure 

‘that opportunities for sustainable and active travel are both protected and improved’ 

and prioritise walking, cycling and public transport  over car and other motorised vehicles.14 

The Supplementary Guidance - Transport and Accessibility (2012) expects developers to 

take account of the standards shown in the non-residential car parking spaces table. The 

times of use may also be relevant as to whether or not extra parking is needed.15  

15.  According to the Application it was suggested during the Pre-Application Discussion that 

a separate application should be submitted for additional car-parking, yet there is no 

proposal to create any parking spaces, even though the application form states that there 

are no existing parking spaces on the site. The Supporting Statement however clarifies that 

there are in fact ‘approximately’ three parking spaces which will be retained. We note that 

the staffing level would be the full time equivalent of three employees and, as not all of 

current members of staff are car drivers, the three parking spaces are considered to be 

sufficient. Nevertheless, measures encouraging the use of alternatives to cars (such as 

cycling by providing cycle parking spaces16) would be welcomed. 

16.  The site is located with a controlled parking zone with pay and display parking facilities. 

According to the Supporting Statement the anticipated the scale and frequency of the 

larger events is ‘broadly similar to those which are held at the University Principal’s 

residence’. It is doubtful whether or not this statement is in favour of the application, as the 

area has limited capacity to accommodate large number of vehicles. One could 

reasonably assume that there would be increased traffic and problems with parking, both 

of which would negatively affect road safety and the amenity of the residential area.  

The proposal provides no measures, such as encouraging the use of alternatives to cars, to 

mitigate possible adverse effects on vehicular traffic, fails to consider the issue of parking and 

the wider negative impact on road safety and the amenity. The Application is not in 

accordance with Policy T2 Managing the Transport Impact of Development, Policy D3 

Sustainable and Active Travel and Supplementary Guidance - Transport and Accessibility. 

                                                 
13 Aberdeen City Council (n 11) 31. 

14 ibid 30. 

15 Aberdeen City Council, Supplem entary Guidance - Transport and Accessibility (2012) 19. 
16 Aberdeen City Council, Supplem entary Guidance - Transport and Accessibility (2012) 25. 

Page 110


	Agenda
	1 66 Tillydrone Avenue - Change of Use from 5 bedroom Dwelling (Class 9) to Six Bedroom HMO (Sui Generis), Replacement Roof, Replacement Windows to Rear Extension, Reduction of Window and Blocking up of Doo -  161003
	161003_DPP-Old_Aberdeen_CC-1406723
	A & E Wiseman
	Dr Helen Lynch
	Dr Rodolfo Hernandez (Additional)
	Dr Rodolfo Hernandez (for second additional circ)
	Dr Rodolfo Hernandez
	Dr Tim Smith
	Méadhbh and Jean-Baptiste Gramain
	Mr Zainuddin Adnan
	Mrs Kamariah Ismail
	Ms Hannah Lynch
	OACC additional comments (for second additional circ agenda)
	OACC additional comments (for second additional circ agenda)
	OAHS - 11th October

	2 14 the Chanonry - Part change of use from class 9 (residential)to mixed use, associated to the Diocese of Aberdeen, incorporating class 10 (activities associated to a religious body) as part  of ground floor, and Class 4 (Offices) at 2nd floor - 161152
	Consultee Comment  - Old Aberdeen Community Council
	L Rep - A Jameson
	L Rep - AHSS
	L Rep - C Gimingham
	L Rep - D Craik
	L Rep - E Hepburn
	L Rep - G Wood
	L Rep - H Gibson
	L Rep - Hazel Christie
	L Rep - M Mackechnie
	L Rep - Old Aberdeen Heritage Society
	L Rep - P Birchley
	L Rep - R  Harwood
	L Rep - R Baxter
	L Rep - R Hamilton
	L rep - S Patterson
	L Rep - S Spence
	L Rep - The Architectural Heritage Society




